
 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
 

 

 
Planning Commission Meeting 

6:00 PM Wednesday, November 30, 2016 

Village Administration Building 

99 High Street 

South Lebanon, Ohio 45065 

 

 Agenda Item 

  

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Open Forum 

5. Review and Approval of Minutes 

 A. Minutes of September 12, 2016 
  

6. Public Hearing – None 

7. Old Business   

A. Case 15-04P – Fellowship Baptist Church – Site Plan Extension Request 

8. New Business 

A. Case 16-10P: Application for Final Plat Approval for Wynstead Section 3  

B. Case 16-11P. Acceptance & Dedication of Public Improvements for Wynstead 
Section 2C 

9. Communications 

10. Adjournment 

 

Members of the public may address the Planning Commission during the Open Forum segment of 
the agenda and shall be limited to five minutes each.  After the speaker concludes remarks, the 
Planning Commission may comment or ask questions at that time.  The Chairperson may at his or 
her discretion restrict duplicate testimony on a particular subject. 

 



1 

 

 
Village of South Lebanon 

99 N. High Street, South Lebanon, Ohio 45065 

513-494-2296       fax: 513-494-1656 

www.southlebanonohio.org 

 

Planning Commission Meeting 

MEETING MINUTES 

September 12, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

Members Present: Staff: 

Tom Hunsche Jerry Haddix, Administrator 

Bill Madison Elbert Allen, Clerk 

Jim Smith  

Darrick Zucco 

   

Members Absent: 

Dennis Rees 

 

1.  Call to order at 6:30 PM 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3.  Roll Call. 

   

4.  Open Forum 

 

 Tom Hunsche spoke about the poor road conditions in the Frederick’s Stand subdivision and the possibility 

of the Village taking over the streets. There has been a lot of construction taking place in this area and a lot of 

mud and gravel from the truck traffic is being left on the pavement. It was suggested that the Frederick’s 

Stand HOA submit a request to Village Council. 

 

5. Review and Approval of Minutes of June 27, 2016. After the minutes were reviewed a motion to approve was 

made by Tom Hunsche and was seconded by Jim Smith.  A vote was taken. All yeas.   

    

6. Public Hearing: None 

 

7. Old Business: None 

 

 

http://www.southlebanonohio.org/


2 

 

8.  New Business: 

  

A.  Case 16-09P: Application for Lot Split of Lots 2 & 4 in Frederick’s Stand. On April 27, 2005, the 

record plan for the Village of Fredericks Stand, Section One was recorded in the Warren County 

Recorder’s Office. The plat consisted of 26 lots of which 20 were 2-family units and six (6) were single 

family units. To date, eleven (11) of the 2-family units have been constructed and lot division lines 

were created by survey plat. The duplexes on Lots 2 & 4 are partially to mostly constructed by 

Monarch Homes. Approval of these lot splits will simply create separate deeds for each unit. A motion 

to approve the application for Lot Split of Lots 2 & 4 in Frederick’s Stand was made by Jim Smith and 

was seconded by Darrick Zucco. A vote was taken. All yeas. 

 

9. Communications: None 

  

10. Motion to adjourn. Jim Smith made the motion; Bill Madison seconded. A vote was taken. All yeas.  

 

 

 

_____________________________                 ______________________________       
      Darrick Zucco – Chairman                  Elbert Allen - Clerk   

  



 

 
 

Village of South Lebanon 

99 N. High Street, South Lebanon, Ohio 45065 

513-494-2296 

fax: 513-494-1656 

www.southlebanonohio.org 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  
 

 

To:  Planning Commission 

 

From:  Jerry Haddix, Village Administrator 

 

Date:  November 29, 2016 

 

Subject:  Fellowship Tract League Site Plan 

  

 

Upon meeting all of the conditions of the site plan approval for an addition to the facility at 3733 

Snook Road, a zoning permit was issued on November 24, 2015. To date, construction has not 

begun. 

 

On November 11, 2016, Charles Stanbery, director of the Fellowship Tract League, submitted a 

request for a one (1) year extension of the site plan while they continue to raise funds for the 

project. 

 

I would recommend the extension for one year through November 23, 2017. 

 

Let me know if you have any questions. 







VILLAGE OF SOUTH LEBANON 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO:  Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Jerry Haddix, Village Administrator 
 
RE: Case 16-10P, Final Plat Approval, Wynstead Section 3 Subdivision  
 
DATE: November 28, 2016 

 
 
On the agenda for November 30th is Case #16-10P, an application for approval of the Final Record 
Plat for the Wynstead Section 3 Subdivision (the “Property”) submitted by Bayer Becker Engineers 
on behalf of Grand Communities, Ltd. (aka Fischer Homes) (the “Owner”). 
 
Background 
On May 31, 2016, the Village Planning Commission passed a motion that granted conditional approval 
of the Final Development Plan for the Property.  The Property is comprised of 9.9441 acres between 
Zoar Road and Windsor Court in the Wynstead 2C Subdivision. Subsequently, all of the conditions 
were met. This plat will create 29 single family lots and four (4) open space lots. The present zoning 
designation is R-3 Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) which was part of the original Village’s at 
River’s Bend development. 
 
The Final Record Plat has been sent to a number of officials and agencies for review.  No comments 
have been received as of this date.  
 
Code Analysis 
Pursuant to Section 15.20.4 of the Village Zoning Code, a subdivision developer, after receiving 
approval of the preliminary plat of the proposed subdivision, shall submit a final plat for the 
subdivision and drawings and specifications of the improvements required therein.  The final plat shall 
be filed with the Planning Commission not later than twelve months after the date of approval of the 
preliminary plat. 
 
Zoning Process 
The Planning Commission shall approve or disapprove the final plat within thirty days after it has 
been filed.  If the plat is disapproved, the grounds for disapproval shall be stated in the records of the 
Commission, and a copy of said record shall be forwarded to the developer.  The Commission shall 
not disapprove the final plat if the developer has done everything that he was required to do and has 
proceeded in accordance with the conditions and standards specified in the approved preliminary plat. 
If disapproved, the developer shall make the necessary corrections and resubmit the final plat within 
thirty days to the Commission for its final approval.   
 
When the final plat has been approved by the Commission, the original tracing (Mylar) shall be signed 
by the chairperson of the Commission and returned to the Owner for filing with the Court Recorder 
after all necessary certifications are received. 
 



 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt a motion to approve the Final Record Plat 
and authorize Chairman Zucco to sign the Mylar with the following conditions: 
 

1. Comply with all comments from the Village Engineer, Warren Co. Tax Map Dept. or any 
other reviewing agency 

2. Provide the statements pursuant to Section 15.20.10 of Village Subdivision Regulations.  
3. Per Village Subdivision regulations, Developer to enter into a Development Agreement with 

the Village prior to Village Council approval of Record Plat. 
 
 
Attachments 
Final Record Plat 
Planning Commission Application 
 











Issue D
ate:

C
hecked By:

D
raw

n by:

D
raw

ing:

Sheet:

Plot time:  Nov 07, 2016 - 9:21am
Drawing name: J:\2004\04M027-003\SV\DWG\04M027-003 RP3 TITLE.dwg - Layout Tab: PG1

www.bayerbecker.com

Mason, OH  45040 - 513.336.6600
6900 Tylersville Road, Suite A

Item Revision Description Date Drwn: Chk:

http://www.bayerbecker.com


E.S.R.

M
.R

.O
.E.=746.5

M
.R

.O
.E.=746.5

E.S.R.

E.S.R.

E.S.R.

E.S.R.

M
.R

.O
.E.=746.5

M
.R

.O
.E.=746.5

Issue D
ate:

C
hecked By:

D
raw

n by:

D
raw

ing:

Sheet:

Plot time:  Nov 07, 2016 - 9:23am
Drawing name: J:\2004\04M027-003\SV\DWG\04M027-003 RP3.dwg - Layout Tab: PG2

www.bayerbecker.com

Mason, OH  45040 - 513.336.6600
6900 Tylersville Road, Suite A

Item Revision Description Date Drwn: Chk:

http://www.bayerbecker.com


VILLAGE OF SOUTH LEBANON 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO:  Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Jerry Haddix, Village Administrator 
 
RE: Case 16-11P, Acceptance and Dedication of Public Improvements for Wynstead 

Section 2C Subdivision 
 
DATE: November 28, 2016 

 
 
One of the items on the agenda for the April 6th meeting is a request of the Planning Commission to 
find that the public improvements for Corwin Nixon Boulevard west of State Route 48 conform to 
South Lebanon’s standards for construction of public improvements.   
 
Background 
 
On November 23, 2011, the Record Plat for Wynstead Section 2 Phase C was recorded in the Warren 
County’s Recorder’s Office. This plat included ten (10) single family lots in which all have been or in 
the process of houses constructed on them.  
 
Code Analysis 
Pursuant to Sec 15.20.7(6) Requirements for the Construction of Improvements, the Village, through 
formal action by the Village Council, shall accept public improvements made by a developer which 
meet the following conditions: 
 

a. Said public improvements have been made in accordance with the requirements of 
these Regulations; and 

b. The design standards of these Regulations have been adhered to; and 
c. Installation of said public improvements has been completed according to the 

requirements of the Village of South Lebanon; and 
d.  All final inspections required by these Regulations have been carried out by the Village 

and said public improvements were found to be acceptable by the Village 
Administrator upon the advice (if needed and requested) by an engineer acting in the 
service of the Village; and 

e.  Accurate "as built" construction plans have been submitted by the subdivider to the 
Village and release from the posted Performance Bond has been granted; and 

f.  The Planning Commission has found the subdivider to be in conformance with these 
Regulations. 

 
 
Zoning Process 
Before Council may accept public improvements for a subdivision, the Planning Commission shall 
issue a finding that the developer is in conformance with the aforementioned regulations a – e.  
 



Staff Review 
Choice One Engineering, the Village Engineer, provided a final inspection for the installation of the 
public improvements by Fischer Homes (“Developer”). Upon completion of the public 
improvements, Choice One issued a letter dated October 7, 2016, a copy of which accompanies this 
memorandum, which confirmed the satisfactory completion of the public improvements by the 
Contractor. 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission issue a finding to Council that they have found the 
public improvements in Wynstead Section 2C Subdivision, as attached, be in conformance with the 
regulations listed in Sec 15.20.7(6) items a – e. 
 
Attachments 
Choice One Acceptance Letter & Exhibit 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dear Mr. Haddix: 
 
 
After field walking the above-mentioned project on October 6, 2016, it has been determined 
that the punch list work has been completed by Towne Construction in a satisfactory manner.  
 
• Towne Construction has satisfactorily completed all punch list items pursuant to Sec 

15.20.7(6)(a-d).  
• The acceptance and dedication of the public improvements may now begin. The streets 

that are included in this acceptance are a portion of Windsor Court and a portion of Castle 
Drive. 

• The accepted streets have 50’ R/W and have the following lengths: 121’ of Castle Drive and 
283’ of Windsor Court. 

• The western extent of the acceptance for Windsor Court is the pavement joint at the end of 
Section Two, Phase C and the eastern extent of the acceptance is at the eastern lot line of 
Lots 98 and 99. The northern extend of the acceptance of Castle Drive is the intersection with 
Windsor Court and the southern extend of the acceptance is the southern lot line of Lots 101 
and 102.  

 
If you have any questions, please contact our office. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Nicholas J. Selhorst, P.E. 
 
 
 
 

Date Attention Address 

October 7, 2016 Jerry Haddix 
Village Administrator 

99 N. High Street 
South Lebanon, OH 45065 

Subject 
Wynstead Section Two, Phase C Acceptance 
Village of South Lebanon, OH 
 



Warren County Legend

ih71

a42

Interstate

US Route

State Route

Local Road

County Boundary

Auditors Tract Line

Civil Township Line

Corporate Line

Overpass Line

Parcel Line

ROW Unknown Width

Road ROW

School Line

Section Line

Subdivision Limit

Subdivision Lot Line

Township & Range

Tract Line

VMS Line

Vacated Road Line

o48

This is a product of the Warren 
County GIS Department. The data 
depicted here has been developed 
with extensive cooperation from 
other county departments as other 
federal state and local government 
agencies. Warren County expressly 
disclaims responsibility for damages 
or liability that may arise from the 
use of this map. Any resale of this 
information is prohibited, except in 
accordance with a licensing 
agreement. 
Copyright 2009 Warren County GIS 

Generated: 11/23/2016 4:05:44 PM

0 20 40

1" = 40 ft

Wynstead 2C Acceptance


